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SAH NOTICES 

SAH Committees. President Donnelly has announced the ap­
pointment of the following committees: 1) Founders ' Award: 
Richard G. Carrott (5643 Magnolia Avenue, Riverside, Ca. 
92506); Labelle Prussin (1711 Dexter, Ann Arbor, Mich. 48103); 
and Stanford Anderson, chairman (51 Commercial Wharf, Bos­
ton, Mass. 02110); 2) Nominating Committee: Elizabeth B. 
Gould (5655 William and Mary Street, Mobile, Ala . 36608); 
Thomas S. Hines (Department of History , University of Califor­
nia, Los Angeles. 405 Hilgard Avenue, Los Angeles, Ca. 90024); 
John D. Hoag (972 Broadway, Boulder, Colo. 80302); Walker C. 
Johnson (833 W. Fullerton Avenue, Chicago, Ill. 60614); and 
Carl D. Sheppard, chairman (342 N. Mississippi River 
Boulevard, St. Paul, Minn. 55104) ; and 3) SAH Alice Davis 
Hitchcock Book Award Committee: Barbara Wriston (Museum 
Education, Art Institute of Chicago, Michigan A venue at Adams 
Street, Chicago, Ill. 60603); Marcus Whiffen (4703 E . Exeter 
Boulevard, Phoenix, Ariz. 85018); and RobertJ . Clark, chairman 
(Department of Art and Archaeology, Princeton University , 
Princeton, N.J . 08540) . 

1977 Annual Meeting, Los Angeles-February 2-7. AdolfK. 
Placzek, Columbia University , is general chairman of the meet­
ing. David Gebhard, University of California, Santa Barbara, 
will act as local chairman. The call for papers was published in 
the April Newsletter. 

The preliminary announcement (containing full informa­
tion on sessions and tours), the preregistration form and 
hotel reservation cards will reach the membership by late 
October. 

1978 Annual Meeting, San Antonio-April 5-10. Adolf K. 
Placzek, Columbia University , will be general chairman of the 
meeting. O'Neil Ford of Ford , Powell and Carson will be honor­
ary local chairman, and Mary Carolyn Jutson will act as local 
chairman. 

1976 Annual Tour- Bluegrass Area of Kentucky (lexington 
and vicinity)-October 6-10. Eric S. McCready, University of 
Wisconsin , Madison, and J;1mes P. Noffsinger, University of 
Kentucky, will serve as co-chairmen . 

1977 Annual Tour-Upper Hudson Valley (Troy-Albany­
Schenectady-Saratoga Springs and vicinity)-August 
24-28. A. Donald Emerich will serve as chairman. Announce­
ment of the tour will reach the SAH membership by April 15, 
1977. 

1977 Foreign Tour-Sicily (Ancient, Medieval and 
Baroque)-June 10-28. Spiro Kostof, University of California, 
Berkeley, and Henry Millon , American Academy in Rome, will 

serve as co-chairmen. The announcement will reach the SAH 
membership by October 1, 1976. Members abroad who wish to 
have the announcement sent airmail should notify the SAH 
office (address above) well in advance. 

1977 Special Tour-Newfoundland (July 24-30). DouglasS. 
Richardson , University of Toronto , will serve as chairman of the 
tour. He will be assisted by Shane O'Dea and George T. Kapelos. 
Announcement of the tour will reach the SAH membership by 
September 1, 1976. Members abroad who wish to have the 
announcement sent airmail should notify the SAH office 
(address above) well in advance. 

SAH Placement Service Bulletin. The next Bulletin will appear 
with the October 1976 issue of the Newsletter. Deadline: 
position-available and member-applicant listings must reach the 
SAH central office (address above) no later than September 15 , 
1976. We urge prospective employers to remember this 
deadline and to submit listings of positions open (under 
categories of Academic, Business and Professions, Gov­
ernment, and Other), which will be published free of charge. 

Abstracts of Papers Presented at Philadelphia Meeting. 
Sets of abstracts are available from the central office of SAH 
(1700 Walnut Street, Room 716, Philadelphia, Pa. 19103) at $3 .00 
postpaid . All orders should be prepaid. 

ANNUAL MEETING 

The Society held its 29th Annual Meeting in Philadelphia, May 
19-24. Over 625 registrants participated in the meeting as the 
Society paid homage to the American architectural experience 
during the past 200 years with a variety of sessions on American 
industrial architecture , expositions, and other aspects of Ameri­
ca's cultural heritage . The University of Pennsylvania recog­
nized the Society and the field of architectural history and criti­
cism on the evening of the 19th by holding a special University of 
Pennsylvania Bicentennial convocation during which Henry­
Russell Hitchcock, Ada Louise Huxtable and Sir Nikolaus Pevs­
ner received honorary doctor of humane letters degrees. Martin 
Meyerson, president of the University, conferred the honorary 
degrees. Sir Nikolaus gave the convocation address . 

Marian C. Donnelly was general chairman of the meeting. The 
honorary local chairman was Charles E. Peterson. R. Damon 
Childs, who led Monday's tour of country houses, was the local 
chairman for a meeting that offered a dizzying number of fas­
cinating sessions and tours that ranged from Maryland to New 
Jersey and the back streets of Society Hill, as well as a gala 
reception at the Philadelphia Museum of Art. The members of 
the local committee responsible for these events included: John 



Ashmead, David Bahlman, Penelope H. Batcheler, Joanne Bul­
ler, Bobbye Burke, John M. Dickey, Anthony N. B. Garvan, 
David A. Hanks, Paul C. Harbeson, Katharine V. McCauley, 
John Maass, Henry J. Magaziner, John Milner, Roger W. Moss, 
Jr., Hyman Myers, Peter J. Parker, Carolyn Pitts, Nancy H. 
Schiess, Otto Sperr, George E. Thomas, Richard Tyler, and 
David T. Van Zanten. 

From left, just before the University of Pennsylvania convoca­
tion: Henry-Russell Hitchcock, Ada Louise Huxtable, Univer­
sity President Martin Meyerson, Sir Nikolaus Pevsner, and Uni­
versity Provost Eliot Stellar. Photo: Mike Rosenman 

SAH ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES 
Hilton of Philadelphia 

May 21, 1976 

fhe meeting was opened by President Kostof at 1:35 p.m. He 
made preliminary announcements about a group visit to the 
PSFS building, to take place at the close of the business meeting, 
md one to the effect that a film on Adler and Sullivans' Old Stock 
Exchange demolition would be screened in the Wharton Room. 

Elisabeth B. MacDougall , Secretary of SAH, called for ap­
proval of the minutes of the Society ' s annual business meeting 
held in Boston April 25 , 1975. The minutes were approved as 
distributed in the June 1975 Newsletter. 

President Kostofwelcomed the members present to the Bicen­
tennial annual meeting of the Society, and thanked Marian C. 
Donnelly, general chairman of the meeting. He asked the Secre­
tary to read letters from the Architectural Institute of Japan and 
the Society of Architectural Historians, Great Britain. These are 
as follows: 

Dear Professor Spiro Kostof, the President: 
On behalf of the Architectural Institute of Japan, I want 

to congratulate all of you at the time of your Bicentennial 
Annual Meeting which is held at the very spot of indepen­
dence of your country. 

Some of our members are about to attend the meeting to 
meet the fellow architects and historians to promote 
friendship as well as to exchange ideas. It would be excit­
ing for our members to meet your participants to discuss 
the new problems we all are facing on the both sides of the 
Ocean at the turn of the last quarter of the twentieth cen­
tury. 
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I wish you the greatest success of the meeting and thank 
you for your hospitality extended to our group. 

Yours truly, 
Yoshitsura Yokoo, Prof. Dr. 
President of Architectural Institute of Japan 

Dear Professor Kostof: 
At a recent meeting of our Executive Committee I was 

desired to send to you and your members the cordial good 
wishes of the Society on the occasion of your 1976 Bicen­
tennial Annual Meeting in Philadelphia. 

Yours sincerely , 
John Summerson 
President 

Peter Willis, present from SAH-GB, extended personal greetings 
from his Society, remarking that that Society owes its existence 
to a small group of people who had planned to establish SAH-GB 
as a chapter of the United States' Society. 

President Kostof made the following announcements: I) The 
SAH sponsored a conference on the architecture of Eastern 
Europe in November 1975 , and James M. Fitch and Anatole 
Senkevitch are now seeking funds to underwrite a reciprocal 
conference in Russia . 2) The SAH Attingham scholarship winner 
is Judith Byrnes Hawk of Washington, D.C. Prof. David Van 
Zanten chaired the selection committee. 3) The winners of the 
two full student scholarships to attend the tour of the Bluegrass 
area of Kentucky this October are Marjorie Pearson, City Uni­
versity of New York Graduate School, and Kingston Heath of 
Brown University. 4) In connection with this Bicentennial an­
nual meeting, the University of Pennsylvania conferred honor­
ary degrees on Ada Louise Huxtable , Henry-Russell Hitchcock, 
and Sir Nikolaus Pevsner at a convocation held the evening of 
May 19, 1976. 5) Kostofread a portion of a letter from William W. 
Van Alstyne , President of the American Association of Univer­
sity Professors, to George Bush, Director of the CIA , concerning 
CIA relationships with the academic community , adding that the 
Board of Directors of the SAH concurred with Van Alstyne's 
statement: 

... the CIA has for years covertly used academic institu­
tions and employed academic persons in ways which com­
promise institutional and professional integrity. Univer­
sities and scholars have been paid to lie about the sources 
of their support, to mislead others, to induce betrayed 
confidences , to misstate the true objects of their interest, 
and to misrepresent the actual objectives of their work. 

In ending the practice of CIA employment of mis­
sionaries and journalists for covert operations , you have 
demonstrated your concern for and your willingness to 
protect the integrity and independence of those institu­
tions. As national President of the American Association 
of University Professors, I call upon you now to provide 
the same guarantees against misuse and subversion for our 
colleges and universities so that they may be freed of the 
stigma of covert, and often unknowing, participation in 
manipulative government operations conducted by the 
CIA .... On behalf of the American Association of Uni­
versity Professors, I write to express my dismay and utter 
repugnance at the disregard for the integrity of institutions 
of higher education shown by the CIA. The practice of 
shamelessly exploiting the reputation of American 
academics for trustworthiness, which has characterized 
CIA activity in the past , evidently continues today . I see 



no reason whatsoever why higher education should not be 
treated with the same regard previously shown in your 
action ending the covert use of missionaries and journalists 
by the CIA .... 

6) Kostof announced that the SAH Advisory Panel on the ac­
creditation of architectural schools had met with Dr. Hugo Blas­
del, Executive Director of the National Architectural Accredit­
ing Board; the panel is composed of JohnS. Garner, Stephen W. 
Jacobs, Narciso Menocal, Adolf K. Placzek, Dora L. Wieben­
son, Robert W. Winter, and Leonard K. Eaton, chairman. 

Treasurer's Report-In the absence of the Treasurer, Robert 
W. Jorgensen, the chairman of the Finance Committee, George 
B. Tatum presented the Society's Statement of Financial Condi­
tion, as of December 31, 1975. He pointed out that the net loss for 
the year was $1,138.06- i.e., disbursements exceeded receipts 
in that amount. 

First Vice President's Report-Marian C. Donnelly reported 
that the 1976 annual meeting had been planned over the past five 
years with the help of the Bicentennial Committee, as the Bicen­
tennial meeting and which had later been expanded to include the 
Boston meeting in 1975. Both meetings had been planned around 
building in America before and after 1776- a watershed moment 
to look at the state of architecture at this time. 

Mrs. Donnelly thanked all the session chairmen and speakers 
in the sessions, as well as the staff of the central office. She 
expressed her appreciation to the local committee for their ef­
forts in organizing exhibitions and tours, and introduced the 
honorary local chairman, Charles E. Peterson and the local 
chairman, R. Damon Childs. In addition, President Kostofintro­
duced the past Presidents of the Society who were in attendance. 

Second Vice President's Report-Adolf K. Placzek reported 
on the progress in planning the 1977 joint annual meeting with the 
College Art Association, and announced that David Gebhard 
would serve as local chairman. He announced that the tours in 
1977 would be as follows: 1) Foreign tour - Sicily, with Spiro 
Kostof and Henry A. Millon as co-chairmen; 2) Special tour­
Newfoundland, with Douglas S. Richardson as chairman, as­
sisted by George Kapelos and Shane O'Dea; and 3) Domestic 
tour - the Upper Hudson (Albany, Schenectady, Troy, and 
Saratoga Springs), chaired by A. Donald Emerich. 

For the future, Placzek announced that the 1978 annual meet­
ing would be held in San Antonio and the 1979 meeting, in 
Savannah. For 1978, a foreign tour of medieval architecture of 
Greece is planned . He asked that members send him ideas for 
future tours and meetings. 

Journal Editor's Report-Christian F. Otto remarked that this 
was the thirty-fifth year for the SAH Journal, and mentioned all 
the past editors of the Journal, thanking them for their legacy of 
excellence. He added that one out of every five manuscripts 
submitted are now published, and that when a paper is accepted, 
publication is within a year (however, the physical process of 
publication takes six months). 

Newsletter Editor's Report-Thomas M. Slade announced 
that the Associate Editor of the Newsletter is Dora P. Crouch of 
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute. She will assume the editorship 
in 1977. 

Committee on Architectural Preservation-Stephen W. 
Jacobs, chairman, announced that the Committee would hold its 
meeting after the annual business meeting. 
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Nominating Committee-President Kostof read the charge to 
the Committee contained in the SAH Bylaws (Article VIII, Sec­
tion 1): "The Nominating Committee shall consist of five persons 
appointed not less than six months prior to the election with 
which they are concerned. One member of the Nominating 
Committee each year shall have been a member of the previous 
Nominating Committee. Nominations for officers and directors 
may be made on petition of twenty-five or more members, pro­
vided they are communicated to the Executive Secretary in 
writing not less than two weeks in advance of the annual meeting 
in which election is to be held. The Nominating Committee is 
specifically directed to consider its own members as candi­
dates." He called upon David Gebhard, Nominating Committee 
chairman, to read the slate of directors, as follows: Directors to 
serve three years: Winslow Ames (Historical Preservation 
Commission, Rhode Island); Margaret H. Floyd (Radcliffe Insti­
tute, Harvard University); Thomas S. Hines (University of 
California, Los Angeles); Spiro Kostof(University of California, 
Berkeley); Eileen M. Michels (College of St. Catherine and Col­
lege of St. Thomas); William H. Pierson, Jr. (Williams College, 
Emeritus); Sally Woodbridge (University of California, Ber­
keley). Director to serve unexpired term - until/977: Stanford 
Anderson (Massachusetts Institute of Technology). MOVED 
and SECONDED to accept the slate of directors as read . Motion 
PASSED. President Kostof asked Carl Sheppard, a member of 
the Nominating Committee, to present the slate of officers. 
Sheppard read the following list: President, Marian C. Donnelly 
(University of Oregon); First Vice President, Adolf K. Placzek 
(Columbia University); Second Vice President, David Gebhard 
(University of California, Santa Barbara); Secretary, Elisabeth 
B. MacDougall (Dumbarton Oaks- Harvard University); Trea­
surer, Robert W. Jorgensen (Jorgensen Associates). MOVED 
and SECONDED to accept the slate of officers as presented. 
Motion PASSED. 

President Kostof expressed appreciation to the outgoing direc­
tors Abbott L. Cummings, Morrison H. Heckscher, William B. 
O'Neal, Jessie Poesch, John R. Spencer, Paul E. Sprague, and 
George B. Tatum. 

Ad Hoc Fund Raising Committee-Morrison Heckscher, 
chairman, reported for the committee. It was their unanimous 
opinion that an effort should be made to increase the membership 
to at least 5,000, and that to continue to raise dues would be 
unwise. Sustaining members (contribution of$100 or more annu­
ally) should be increased from the present 65 to at least !50. He 
urged that members submit names of persons to the central office 
to be Active or Sustaining members. Heckscher emphasized that 
additional funds are needed for special projects, as well as the 
escalating expenses for the regular activities of the Society. He 
announced that the Board of Directors has voted that when the 
Endowment Fund n~aches a value of $65,000, income from the 
Fund may be used for special projects when so voted by the 
Board. 

Task Foree-Osmund Overby, chairman, reported that his 
committee was composed of H. Allen Brooks, Elizabeth Brown, 
Henry-Russell Hitchcock, AdolfK. Placzek, and Robert B. Ret­
tig, and that their charge was to look at all aspects of the Society. 
He reported that the Task Force had received over 1,000 ques­
tionnaires, of which 959 had been tabulated. The following were 
among the facts learned from the questionnaires: I) the diversity 
of the membership; 2) healthy geographical spread of member­
ship; 3) the membership is satisfied with the publications; 4) there 
is a clear preference for annual meetings in the spring of the year; 
5) a general and strong support for the SAH tours; 6) there is a 



very strong interest in preservation (by a vote of 5 to I). The Task 
Force also received letters from former officers and editors 
which endorsed the report of the Fund Raising Committee. Tabu­
lation ofthe questionnaires showed approval of the Society and 
its present activities. 

Founders' Award-In the absence of Committee Chairman 
Bernard Boyle, Damie Stillman presented the Founders' Award 
for the best article in the Journal of SAH in 1974 by a younger 
author to Labelle Prussin for her article "An Introduction to 
Indigenous African Architecture." Mr. Stillman read the follow­
ing citation: "On behalf of the Committee, which consisted of 
Bernard Boyle , Myra Rosenfeld, and myself, it gives me great 
pleasure to present the Founders' A ward for the best article by a 
younger scholar in the Journal during 1974 to Labelle Prussin for 
her ground breaking article 'An Introduction to Indigenous Afri­
can Architecture, ' which has opened our eyes to a great many 
new things." 

SAH Founders' Award Winner Labelle Prussin 

SAH Alice Davis Hitchcock Book Award-Barbara Miller 
Lane, chairman of the Award Committee, announced that the 
winner for the most distinguished work of scholarship in the 
history of architecture published by a North American scholar 
during the period November I , 1973- October 31 , 1975 is Rudolf 
Wittkower for Gothic vs. Classic , Architectural Projects in 
Seventeenth-Century Italy. Mrs. Lane presented the award to 
Margot Wittkower, and read the following citation: 

This study of the impact of Gothic architecture upon the 
practice and theory of Italian architects in the sixteenth, 
seventeenth and eighteenth centuries illuminates a little­
known but important episode in the history of European 
art. Examining the designs made by successive genera­
tions for the facades of Milan Cathedral and S. Petronio, 
Bologna, it shows how architects of the classical tradition 
were compelled, by their very adherence to its principles, 
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to come to terms with a tradition that was altogether differ­
ent and in some respects antithetical. 

Throughout his scholarly career, Rudolf Wittkower de­
lighted colleagues and students with his genius for re­
search, his scholarship unsurpassed in breadth and depth , 
his mastery of exegesis. With the publication of Gothic vs . 
Classic , we are enabled to enjoy these qualities again, and 
in a new context. 

SAH Alice Davis Hitchcock Book Award Winner Rudolf 
Wittkower 

New Business-There being no old business before the meet­
ing, President Kostof called upon Walter L. Creese, who made a 
plea for donations to the Royal Institute of British Architects , 
which is trying to raise£ I ,000,000 to increase the endowment in 
order to be able to continue acquisitions for the library. He asked 
that contributions be sent to 66 Portman Place , London. 

Wisconsin Chapter-President Kostof announced that the 
Board of Directors at their meeting on May 19 accepted the 
petition for the formation of a Wisconsin Chapter- the 21st 
chapter of the Society. 

Marian Donnelly thanked Spiro Kostof for his fine leadership 
and, in recognition of all the travel he had undertaken in six years 
on the Executive Committee, presented him with the Society 's 
first "Hotel Navigation Award ." 

At the close of the meeting, outgoing President Kostof ex­
pressed his thanks to the members for their support, the commit­
tees and their chairmen for their devotion and work , and the 
same to the Directors. He expressed his great pleasure and 
interest in his term as President. 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:55 p.m. 

June 30, 1976 
Respectfully submitted , 

Elisabeth B. MacDougall , Secretary 



SAH 1976 FOREIGN TOUR TO MALTESE ISLANDS 

When members of the 1976 SAH tour group met on their last 
evening in Malta in the Knights Room of Hotel Phoenicia, they 
knew that they had had a splendid architectural introduction to 
Malta and Gozo given by architect Richard England. Looking for 
the second time at the film on Maltese architecture, Heritage in 
Stone, as a visual farewell, we were all dismayed at viewing a 
neolithic temple never seen, a fortification too quickly taken for 
granted, and another version of Maltese Baroque in a church 
never visited. 

Viewed at a distance across Marsamxett Harbour, Sliema with 
the soft honey-colored limestone from which Malta has been 
built and built again could have been a part ofthe natural instead 
of the man-made landscape. There are few trees and much ofthe 
islands are plains so the structures of Malta are always on the 
horizon . One can see in some spots , seven towns with their 
cluster of cubes around the church. Yet the structures seem a 
part of the landscape; for, whatever their architectural expres­
sion, they are built from that one stone which is in many places 
exposed to the elements. 

The archaeological zones of neolithic temples are dispersed 
over the islands. Maltese megalithic architecture is older than 
anything similar known in the Western Mediterranean. On the 
wind-swept heights above the sea at Hagar Qim we saw the skill 
with which the inhabitants five millenia ago built their temples to 
the celebration of fertility. There is little on the Maltese Islands 
between the excavations of the neolithic tombs and temples 
which have been excavated and partially reconstructed, and the 
late medieval, except the Roman catacombs and the villa at 
Rabat. Mdina, which the Saracens enclosed of the larger Roman 
capitol, was rebuilt in the 17th and 18th centuries. The centuries 
after the Normans defeated the Saracens were not prosperous 
ones for the islands so the architectural remains date only as far 
back as some of the churches built after Malta was divided into 
ten parishes in 1436. One ofthose, the simple Hal Milieri Chapel, 
now a project of the Din L-Art Helwa, stands where its village 
has vanished. 

With the coming of the Knights from Rhodes in 1530, came 
prosperity and the architecture that makes Malta one of the 
greatest concentrations of important architecture in the world. 
A harbor trip introduced us to the fortification of the harbors of 
Malta. One of their restoration projects, the Wignacourt Tower 
of 1610, at St. Paul's Bay was the prototype for the many other 
forts of this period. 

After the successful defense against the Turkish Great Siege of 
1565, Valletta was founded immediately and quickly gained as­
cendancy over the inland capitol of Mdina and Birgu, across the 
Great Harbour, where the Knights had first settled. The Renais­
sance rectangular grid plan of Francesco Laparelli da Cortona 
and his assistant, the Maltese Girolano Cassar, has been little 
altered through the years. The great Magisterial Palace of Cas­
sar, engineer to the Order, is a proper introduction to the iconol ­
ogy ofthe domestic architecture of the Knights. As one moves up 
the great staircases from the Courtyard , one comes into architec­
tural space with furnishings that indicate the power of an order 
that long ago left its origins in that small hospital and chapel of 
Brother Gerard, ''Custodian of the Poor of Christ of the Hospital 
of Jerusalem," that greeted the victorious army of the First 
Crusade on 15 July, 1099. 

The legislature of Malta now convenes in the Palace. The Post 
Office occupies an 18th century palace built on the site of two 
17th century houses. The National Museum of Art occupies one 
oft he first palaces to be built in Valletta. A remodeling in the 18th 
century gave it a handsome Baroque staircase. It was the home of 
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the Commander-in-Chief of the British Mediterranean Fleet until 
1961. The National Museum of Archaeology was designed in 
1571 for the Auberge of Provence by Cassar who designed the 
original auberges in Valletta . The civic purposes of Valletta and 
Malta are being served by these palaces and auberges which 
tower above the narrow streets of Valletta. This is .urban ar­
chitecture five or six stories high with facades of enclosed bal­
conies of painted wood and sequestered inner courtyards. At the 
command of the Order, the corners of buildings at intersections 
were given architectural prominence through columns, mold­
ings, and statues. 

A people as Catholic as the Maltese erected the church as the 
most important building in their towns and villages. We walked 
winding streets walled by masonry to suddenly see the Baroque 
excitement of the village church emerge. In some towns this 
close-knit townscape is being destroyed by tearing down build­
ings to widen roads. The village churches are anything but dusty, 
redundant monuments to the past. There is still the full-bodied 
rivalry from town to town of painting walls and ceilings and 
gilding interiors. 

In the small city of Mdina, the austere walls of palaces and 
convents give way to the Renaissance harmony of the Piazza St. 
Paul with its Baroque cathedral by Lorenzo Gafa and the Sicilian 
Baroque of the former seminary now housing the museum. Dur­
ing the evening of our day in Mdina we enjoyed dinner in an 
imposing private home- the 17th century Palazzo Feriol. 

While Maltese churches are frequently Baroque there is such a 
Renaissance monument as Tomasso Dingli's St. Mary at Attard. 
Richer Birkirkara forsook its old parish Church of the Assump­
tion, built about 1600 from designs of Vittorio Cassar, son of 
Girolamo, as it built in 1727 its splendid new Baroque Church of 
St. Helen. Today the parishioners are rebuilding the old church 
after much of it collapsed. It's extraordinary to see the patient 
restoration of the Renaissance interiors in progress. Scholarship 
on Maltese churches is just beginning. Professors and students at 
the Royal University of Malta are making such solid contribu­
tions as identifying Romano Carapecchia, who came from Rome 
to have a hand in the first breakthrough of the austere masonry of 
Renaissance Valletta with the ornamental incrustation. 

The British left relatively little imprint on Malta architectur­
ally. Just as there is the Victorian Venetian Gothic building on 
the Cathedral Square at Mdina, the Auberge of Germany was 
demolished in 1838 to make way for the Victorian Gothic St. 

SAH in Malta 1976 at Hagar Qim 
Photo: Kenneth J. LaBudde 



Paul's Anglican Cathedral whose spire stands in disregard of its 
neighbors . There is the marble statue of Victoria before the 
arcaded facade of the Royal Malta Library. 

There is little sense at first of the 1300 air raids which rained on 
Malta during World War II. Although each time one enters the 
gate to Valletta, which is in the streamlined "classic" style 
official Malta used for rebuilding, one sees fragments of columns 
and monumental steps which now surround a parking lot. There 
stood the great 19th century opera house . Here and there one 
finds other nondescript modern buildings such as the General 
Workers Union where stood the Auberge of France or the Law 
Courts for the Auberge of Auvergne, both lost in bombing raids. 

Contemporary architecture was viewed on a trip to Manikata 
to see Richard England's Church of St. Joseph in which he has 
maintained the Maltese tradition of the curvilinear volumes of 
the church on a height which dominates the cubic volumes ofthe 
village houses . The new, more interesting buildings are where 
the prosperous build on the beaches and in the cities , such as 
Sliema and St. Julian ' s Bay. 

In Rome we each went our own way for four days to museums 
and churches , coming back together for dinner to our comforta­
ble, conveniently located Hotel Flora. Evening receptions were 
held at the Villa Aurelia on the beautiful grounds of the American 
Academy , hosted by Henry Millon, past SAH president and now 
director of the Academy, and in the apartment ofMina Caselli, a 
member of our Malta group. These occasions were a fitting 
ending to a most successful , stimulating, and rewarding tour. 

Contributed by Kenneth J. LaBudde 

NEWS OF MEMBERS 

LEO A. DALY of Omaha, Nebraska received the Edward C. 
Kempler Award from the AlA for 1976, for his work on energy 
and the built environment .. . PETER L. GOSS , University of 
Utah, has been awarded a research grant for 1976-77 under the 
Fulbright-Bayes Act to investigate Romanian folk architecture 
and study the methods of the selection, documentation and pres­
ervation of architectural monuments in Romania .. . SARAH 
B. LANDAU and PAUL GOLDBERGER participated in the 
evening lecture series sponsored by The Institute for Architec­
ture and Urban Studies in New York City . . . The first recipient 
of the Pennsylvania Academy of the Fine Arts Furness Prize is 
HYMAN MYERS, the architect in charge of the restoration and 
renovation of the Academy. The Furness Prize is awarded to 
recognize particular distinction by an American architect and 
presented from time to time as deemed appropriate by a commit­
tee composed of the Academy's Board and Staff and members of 
the Philadelphia Chapter of the American Institute of Architects 
. . . RICHARD GUY WILSON, assistant editor of NSAH, has 
accepted a position in the architectural history department at the 
University of Virginia. 

GRANTS AND FELLOWSHIPS 

ACLS. A variety of fellowships, grants-in-aid, and travel grants 
for international meetings abroad are available . In most cases a 
Ph.D. or its equivalent are required. For more information con­
tact: ACLS, 345 East 46th Street, New York, N. Y. 10017. 

NEA. "Work Experience Internship Program," a 13-w!!ek pro­
gram designed to give participants an overview of the National 
Endowment and arts activities in this country . Interns will be 
assigned to one ofthe Endowment's programs such as Museums, 
Visual Arts , Architecture and Environmental Arts , etc . Candi­
dates must be sponsored by a college , university, state arts 
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agency, or other non-profit , tax exempt arts organization. 
Stipend will be provided . Program dates are : February 7-May 6, 
1977, application deadline, November 12, 1976; June 
6-September 2, 1977, deadline , March 4, 1977. Contact: Intern 
Program Officer, Mail Stop 557 , National Endowment for the 
Arts, Washington, D. C. 20506. 

BOOKS 

Andree, Herb and Young, Noel. Santa Barbara Architecture from Spanish Colo­
nial to Modern . Photographs by Wayne McCall. Foreword by David Gebhard , 
SAH. Santa Barbara: Capra Press, 1975 . $30.00. Available from Capra Press, 
631 State St. , Santa Barbara, Ca. 93101. 

Arthur , Eric Ross. The Barn: A Vanishing Landmark in North America. New York: 
A. & W. Visual Library, [1975] c. 1972. $9.95. 

Bealer , Alex. The Tools that Built America. New York: Crown Publishers, 1976. 
$12.50. 

B0;ton Society of Architects. Architecture of Boston and Cambridge. New York: 
Crown Publishers , 1976. $12.95; paper, $5.95. 

Bowman, Virginia McDaniel. Historic Williamson County [Tennessee]: Old 
Homes and Sites. Nashville: Blue and Gray Press , 1971. No price given. 

Brooke, Christopher N. L. , assisted by Gillian Keir. London 800-1216: The Shap­
ing of a City. Berkeley: University of California Press, 1975. $21.00. 

Campen , Richard N ., SAH. Our Valley . .. Our Villages: An Illustrated Story of 
the Chagrin Valley. Chagrin Falls, Ohio: The West Summit Press, 1976. $8.00; 
postage $.50. Available from The West Summit Press, 27 W. Summit St. , 
Chagrin Falls, Ohio 44022. 

Caplan, Ralph. The Design of Herman Miller. New York: Whitney Library of 
Design, 1976. $13.50. ISBN 0-8230-7141 -3. 

Corpus de Castillos Medievales de Castilla. Editorial Clave S.A. , 1975. 3500 ptas. 
Members of "Asociadon Espanola de Amigos de los Castittos" receive 20% 
discount. Available from publisher at Apartado F. D.n. 0 5l , Bilbao-9. 

DeBreffny , Brian and Mott , George. The Churches and Abbeys of Ireland. New 
York: W. W. Norton & Co. , 1976. $12.95. 

Drew, Philip. Frei Otto: Form and Structure. Boulder , Colo.: Westview Press, 
1976. $32.75. 

Edmiston, Susan and Cirino, Linda D. Literary New York: A History and Guide. 
Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1976. $12.95; paper , $6.95. 

Gebhard, David, SAH and Von Breton, Harriette , SAH. L.A. in the Thirties-
1931 -1941. Layton , Utah: Peregrine Smith, 1975. Note: Available from SAH 
central office. $8.90, postpaid. 

Glass tone, Victor. Victorian and Edwardian Theatres: An Architectural and Social 
Survey . Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1975. $17.50. 

Great Architecture of the World. New York: Random House , 1975. $29 .95. 
Guinness , Desmond and Sadler, Julius Trousdale , Jr., SAH. Palladia: A Western 

Progress. New York: The Viking Press, 1976. $14.95. 
Harvey, John . Medieval Craftsmen . New York: Drake Publishers, 1975. $14.95 . 
Hindle , Brook (ed.). America's Wooden Age: Aspects of Its Early Technology. 

Tarrytown, N.Y.: Sleepy Hollow Restorations, 1975. $15.00. 
Historic Buildings of Massachusetts: Photographs from the Historic American 

Buildings Survey. New York: Scribner, 1976. $12.50; paper , $5.95. ISBN 
0-684-14567-7. 

Howse, H. Derek. Francis Place and the Early History of New York. New York: 
Science History Publications, 1975. $12.95. 

Lowe, David. Lost Chicago . Boston : Houghton Mifflin Co. , 1975. $20.00. 
Kyriazi, Gary. The Great American Amusement Parks: A Pictorial History . Se­

caucus , N.J .: Citadel Press, 1976. $14.95 . ISBN 0-8065-0525-7 . 
Mcintyre , Alex McKay, SAH. Beacon Hill: A Walking Tour. Boston: Little , 

Brown and Co., 1975. $3.95, paper. 
McKay , Alexander G. Houses, Villas and Palaces in the Roman World. Ithaca , 

N .Y.: Cornell University Press, 1975. $19.75. 
Macaulay, David. Pyramid. Boston: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1975. $7.95 . 
Mullen , Robert J. , SAH. Dominican Architecture in Sixteenth Century Oaxaca. 

Tempe , Arizona: Center for Latin American Studies, Arizona State University , 
1974. $12.95 . 

Mulloy, Elizabeth D. The History of the National Trust for Historic Preservation. 
Washington, D.C.: The Preservation Press for The National Trust, 1976 . 
$11.00. ISBN 0-89133-033-X. Available from The National Trust Preservation 
Bookstore, 740Jackson Place, N.W., Washington , D.C. 20006. Postage, $1.00. 

Pevsner, Nikolaus. A History of Building Types. Princeton: Princeton University 
Press , 1976. $37.50. ISBN 0-691-09904-9. Originally delivered as the A. W. 
Mellon Lectures in the Fine Arts , 1970. 

Piranesi: Etchings and Drawings. Introduction by Roseline Bacon. Boston: New 
York Graphic Society , 1975. $19.95. 

Platt, Frederick. America's Gilded Age. South Brunswick: A. S. Barnes , 1975. 
$25.00. 

Prairie School Architecture: Studies from the ''Western Architect". Edited aod 
introduced by H. Allen Brooks , SAH. Toronto: University of Toronto Press, 
1975. $30.00. 

Puppi, Lionello. Andrea Palladia. Trans. by Pearl Sanders. Boston: New York 
Graphic Society, 1975. $47.50. 

Rose, Albert C. Historic American Roads ,from Frontier Trails to Superhighways. 
New York: Crown Publisher, Inc. , 1976. $12.95; paper, $6.95. 

Rosebrock, Ellen F. Farewell to Old England, New York in Revolution. New York: 
South Street Seaport Museum, 1976. $1.95. ISBN 0-913344-21-4 . 
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REPRINTS AND NEW EDITIONS 

Adam, Robert. The Works in Architecture of Robert and James Adam. London: 
Academy Editions; New York: St. Martin's Press, 1975. $30.00. ISBN 
0-85670-034-7. Revised and enlarged version of the 1902 edition published by E. 
Thecard Fils, Dourdan, France. 

Architecture and Design: /890-/939. An International Anthology of Original Arti­
cles. Edited by Tim and Charlotte Benton at The Open University with Dennis 
Sharp. New York: The Whitney Library of Design, 1975. No price. Originally 
published in England under the title of Form and Function: A Source Book for 
the History of Architecture and Design, 1890-1939. 

L'Architecture Vivante. New index by Margaret Richardson. New York: Da Capo 
Press, Inc. , 1975. 5 vols. $595.00. ISBN 0-306-70540-0. Original 21 issues 
published 1923-1933. 

Bacon, Edmund N. , SAH. Design of Cities. Rev. ed. New York: Viking Press, 
1976. $9 .95, paper. ISBN 0-670-00619-X. Original edition published 1967. 

Crow, Gerald H. William Morris, Designer. Folcroft, Pa.: Folcroft Library Edi­
tions , 1975. $25.00. ISBN 0-8414-3469-7. Reprint of the 1934 edition published 
by Studio, Ltd., London. 

Eastlake, Charles L. A History of the Gothic Revival. Introduction by Alan Gow­
ans, SAH. Watkins Glen , N.Y.: American Life Foundation, 1975.$5.95. Origi­
nally published 1969. 

Edwards, I.E.S. The Pyramids of Egypt. Rev. ed. with rev. bibliography. Balti­
more: Penguin, 1975. $3.50, paper. ISBN 0-14-020168-8. 

Fletcher, Banister. Sir Banister Fletcher's A History of Architecture. 18th edition. 
Revised by J. C. Pilmes. London: Athlone Press, 1975; distributed by Charles 
Scribner's Sons, New York. $12.50. ISBN 0-485-55001-6. 

Heath , Sidney H. The Romance of Symbolism and Its Relation to Church Orna­
ment and Architecture. Detroit: Gale Research Co., 1975. $14.00. ISBN 
0-8103-4302-9. Reprint of the 1909 edition published by F. Griffiths, London. 

History of the Louisiana Purchase Exposition and Other Events of the St. Louis 
World's Fair of 1904. Mark Bennitt , compiler. New York: Arno Press, 1976. 
$66.00. Reprint of 1905 edition. 

Hitchcock, Henry-Russell , SAH. American Architectural Books: A List of Books, 
Portfolios, and Pamphlets on Architecture and Related Subjects Published in 
America before 1895. New expanded edition. New York: Da Capo Press, 1975. 
$12.50. ISBN 0-306-70742-X. Originally published by the University of Min­
nesota Press, 1962. 

____ .Early Victorian Architecture in Britain. New York: Da Capo Press, 
1976. $45.00, 2 vols. ISBN 0-306-80036-5. Abridged edition of 1954 publication. 

Jackson , Thomas G. The Renaissance of Roman Architecture. New York: Hacker 
Art Books, 1976.$75.00. ISBN 0-87817-091-X. Reprint of 1922 edition in three 
volumes. 

Madsen, Stephan T. Sources of Art Nouveau. New York: Da Capo Press, 1975. 
$35.00. ISBN 0-306-70733-{). Reprint of the 1956 edition published by H. As­
chehoug, Oslo. 

Magee's lllustrated Guide of Philadelphia and the Centennial Exhibition. New 
York: N. Cohen Books, 1975. $8.95. ISBN 0-9600846-2-2. Reprint of 1876 
edition. 

Miller, Helen D. H. Historic Places Around the Outer Banks. Rev. ed. Charlotte: 
McNally and Loftin, c. 1975. $2.50, paper. 

ARTICLES 

Abercrombie, Stanley, SAH. "Beaux-Arts at the Modern," Art Forum XIV (Feb­
ruary 1976) , pp. 52-56. 

Cohen, Stuart E., SAH. "The Unknown Architecture of Chicago ," Inland Ar­
chitect (March 1976), pp. 19-22. 

Condit, Carl W., SAH. "A Richness and Diversity of Creative Design," inland 
Architect (March 1976), pp. 23-28. 

Downs, Arthur Channing, Jr. , SAH. "America's First 'Medieval' Churches, " 
Historical Magazine of the Protestant Episcopal Church XLV, no. 2 (June 
1976), pp. 166-176. 

Irving , Robert F., SAH. "Andrew Rebori , Dreamer and All-Around Doer," Inland 
Architect (May 1976), pp. 12-16. 

Miller, Nory. "Fred Keck at 81 , 'Hit of the Show' After 56 Years ," Inland 
Architect (May 1976), pp. 5-11. 

___ . "War of Ideas: Chicago's Battle of Architecture," Inland Architect 
(March 1976), pp. 7-14. 

O'Doherty, Brian. "Inside the White Cube: Notes on the Gallery Space," I, Art 
Forum XIV (March 1976), pp. 24-30. 

Pran, Peter C. and Schulze, Franz. "The Tradition: Rational, Strong and Continu­
ing ," Inland Architect (March 1976), pp. 15-18. 

Till , Eric. "Capability Brown at Burghley," Country Life (October 16, 1975), pp. 
982-985. 

JOURNALS 

Landscape Architecture 66 (May 1976) is devoted to garden preservation and 
includes: Grady Clay, "Whose Time is This Place? The Emerging Science of 
Garden Preservation''; G. W. Dimbleby, ''Pollen as Botanical Evidence of the 
Past"; Wilhelmina Jashermski, "From Vesuvius' Dust: Pompeii Emerges a 
City of Gardens and Vineyards"; Gerda Gollwitzer, "Great Garden at Hanover 
Returns to Original Design"; Gordon P. Dewolf, "Sourcebook for Plant 
Documentation"; H. R. Heyer, "Shifting Meanings in a Swiss Garden Land­
scape"; J. B. Baron van Asbeck, "Het Loo-The Dutch Treat: English Queen 
Influences Restoration of Netherlands Estate"; Robert B. Fisher, "Following 
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Washington Down the Garden Path"; Audrey Noel Hume, "Historical Ar­
chaeology in Garden Restoration"; Richard A. Brown, "Record-Keeping for 
Botanical Gardens"; J. C. McDaniel, "Fitting Species and Cultivars to the 
Landscape"; Perry Borchers, SAH, " Photogrammetry's Use in Fixing 
Scenes"; and James Marston Fitch, SAH, "Preservation Requires Tact, Mod­
esty and Honesty Among Designers." Offprint available from The National 
Trust Preservation Bookstore, 740 Jackson Place, N .W., Washington, D. C. 
20006. $4.00, postpaid . 

Nineteenth Century. Vol. 2 (Spring 1976). Mary Lane Morrison, "On Savannah 
Squares"; Gary Vanderweil, "Draft Heating and Ventilating Systems of the 
Victorian Era"; Julius T. Sadler, Jr., SAH, "A Gothic Sampling"; Brit A. 
Storey, "Nineteenth Century Denver"; Antoinette J. Lee, SAH, "James 
Bogardus in Philadelphia." 

The Old-House Journal. An illustrated brochure that identifies 17 of the most 
common old-house types found in the United States has just been published by 
the Journal. Free single copies can be obtained from: The Old-House Journal, 
Dept. 30, 199 Berkeley Place, Brooklyn, N .Y. 11217. 

The Prairie School Review XI, No.3 (1974). Charles E. Gregerson, "Early Adler & 
Sullivan Work in Kalamazoo" and Paul E. Sprague, SAH, "Sullivan's Scoville 
Building: A Chronology"; XI, No.4 (1974). Theodore Turak, SAH, "French 
and English Sources of Sullivan's Ornament and Doctrine." 

Revue de L'Art 29 (1975). Jean-Pierre Babelon, "Dix Ans d' Amanagement 'A 
Paris, 1965-1975"; Franqois Loyer, "Dix Ans de Renovation 'A Paris"; Fran­
~ois Choay, "Haussmann et le systeme des espvies verts parisiens." 

QUERIES 

Art and Religion. Information concerning programs in higher 
education that relate to the studies of art and religion is sought by 
John W. Cook, Yale University, Box 9, Yale Divinity School, 
409 Prospect Street, New Haven, Ct. 06510. 

Welles Bosworth (1869-1966). Since 1973, the City of Yonkers 
has been engaged in restoring Utermyer Park and Gardens. The 
Grecian Gardens were designed by Bosworth 1912-1916, possi­
bly with the assistance of Charles Leavitt. Paul Manship de­
signed many of the sculptural details for the Grecian Gardens. 
Plans, records, photos, or information about any of these men 
during their connection with Mr. Utermyer is sought. Contact: 
Ms. Neil Covatta, Restoration Coordinator, Utermyer Park and 
Gardens, Department of Development, 35 South Broadway, 
Yonkers, N.Y. 10701 (914-423-7300). 

NYC. The AlA Guide to New York City is a guidebook to the 
history, architecture and culture of the city. It is now being 
revised for a second edition to be issued in 1977. Suggestions for 
additions or corrections should be sent to: Norval White, City 
College, Department of Architecture, Convent and 138th Street, 
New York, N.Y. 10031. 

Calvert Vaux (1824-1895). Information and inquiries are wel­
comed for a biography on Vaux. Contact: Dennis Steadman 
Francis, Astor Memorial Bldg., 256-258 Mott Street, New York, 
N.Y. 10012. 

Ware and Van Brunt. Paul C. Harbeson has requested that any 
member with information concerning a house erected in Mat­
tapoisett, Mass. about 1872 for George Otis Shattuck, Esq. of 
Boston by the firm of Ware and Van Brunt contact the present 
owner, Edward F. R. Wood, Jr. Enlarged in 1907, Mr. Wood is 
returning the house to its original volume and is seeking informa­
tion on how the house began. He can be reached at: P.O. Box 
412, Mattapoisett, Mass. (617-758-3588); or c/o Provident Na­
tional Bank, 17th and Chestnut Streets, Philadelphia, Pa. 19103 
(215-585-5472). 

EXHIBITS 

Atlanta Historical Society. Atlanta Architecture: The Victo­
rian Heritage is the subject of a multimedia exhibition that will 
run until October 31, 1976. An illustrated catalog of Atlanta 
buildings and architectural ornament is available. Short film and 



slide presentations are also used to depict the history of Atlanta's 
great buildings of the period 1837-1918. The Atlanta Historical 
Society, Walter McElreath Hall, 3099 Andrews Drive, N. W., 
Atlanta, Ga. 30305. Hours: Tuesday-Saturday, 10:30-4:30; Sun­
day , 2-4:30; closed Monday. 

Hudson River Museum. The Silver Screen in Westchester is 
the title of an exhibit that surveys the architecture of film in 
Westchester County. Included are the sites for two of D. W. 
Griffith's works, "Battle of the Sexes" (1913) and " Orphans of 
the Storm" (1921). Photographs of several local theatres in 
Yonkers and Port Chester are included along with sketches by 
Erick Kaeyer, an architect who worked with Thomas Lamb and 
Joseph Urban. The exhibit dates are April11 through September 
12, 1976. Hudson River Museum, 511 Warburton Ave., Yonkers, 
N.Y. Hours: Tuesday-Saturday, 10-5; Sundays and holidays, 
1-5; and Wednesday evening, 7-10. 

The Octagon. William Thornton: A Renaissance Man in the 
Federal City illustrates the life and manifold interests of Dr. 
William Thornton (1759-1828) , physician, architect , inventor , 
and public official. The second Bicentennial exhibition at The 
Octagon has been supported by a grant from the Morris and 
Gwendolyn Cafritz Foundation for research and installation . The 
installation includes portraits of Thornton and his contem­
poraries , original sketches , architectural drawings, documents 
and manuscripts from the collections of the AlA, New York 
Historical Society , U.S. Department of State , University of Vir­
ginia, American Philosophical Society and the papers of Dr. 
Thornton in the collection of the Library of Congress. The 
exhibit dates are July 20, 1976 through December 31, 1976. The 
Octagon, 1799 New York Avenue, N.W., Washington , D.C. 
Hours: Tuesday-Saturday , 10-4; Sunday 1-4 ; closed Monday. 

IDS TO RIC PRESERVATION 

IHASP. The Interagency Historic Architectural Services pro­
gram (IHASP) fulfills several of the Secretary of Interior's re­
sponsibilities under Executive Order 11593 , " Protection and 
Enhancement of the Cultural Environment," (May 31, 1971). In 
particular, these responsibilities include: I) developing and dis­
seminating information concerning methods and techniques for 
preserving and maintaining historic properties owned by Federal 
agencies and State and local governments; 2) advising Federal 
agencies on the evaluation , preservation and maintenance of 
historic properties; and 3) evaluating applications for the transfer 
of surplus Federal property for historic monument purposes. 
I HASP is currently preparing, under the direction of Lee Nelson, 
SAH , a series of publications on the technical aspects of preser­
vation for distribution to Federal, State and local agencies . In 
addition, a series of Preservation Briefs is being prepared for 
wide distribution. Each Preservation Brief will provide informa­
tion about a technical problem encountered frequently at all 
levels of preservation. !HASP also provides information on early 
building technology in the form of reading lists and specialized 
papers . 

The following items are presently available and can be ordered 
free of charge, except as noted, from the Interagency Historic 
Architectural Services Program, Office of Archeology and His­
toric Preservation, National Park Service, U.S. Department of 
Interior, Washington , D.C. 20240: 

Guidelines for Rehabilitating and Preserving Old Buildings, Neighborhoods and 
Commercial Areas. 22 pages. 

Exterior Cleaning of Historic Masonry Buildings. A technical discussion intended 
primarily for architects, conservators and other professionals. 18 pages. 
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Rectified Photography and Photo Drawings for Historic Preservation . A method 
developed for photo-documentation and preparation of photographic working 
drawings. 37 pages. (Temporarily out of print) 

X-ray Non-destructive Examination of Historic Structures. 24 pages. 
Cyclical Maintenance for Historic Buildings. 125 pages. Available from the 

Superintendent of Documents, U .S. Government Printing Office , Washington , 
D.C . 20402. $2.00. Stock no. 024-005-00637-1. 

Preservation Briefs: No. /. " The Cleaning and Waterproof Coating of Masonry 
Buildings." 4 pages . 

Preservation Briefs: No.2. " Repointing Mortar Joints in Historic Brick Build-
ings." 8 pages. 

Reading Lists. "Architectural Painting for Historic Structures"; Bricklayer, 
Carpenter , and Stonecutter Tools" ; "Cottages and Cabins" ; "Early Wood Fram­
ing Systems" ; " Inventory of Metal Buildings Component Catalogs in the Library of 
Congress"; " Landscape Architecture and the Allied Arts"; " Log Structures"; 
" Stone Cutting: Books and Periodicals in the Library of Congress." (No Charge.) 

OAHP. The Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation has 
issued I I 593 , a bulletin designed to provide technical and other 
program-related information as required by section 3 of Execu­
tive Order 11593. Distributed primarily to Federal , State and 
local government officials responsible for historic preservation 
programs, I 1593 bas been created for disseminating information 
and sharing methods and ideas. Contact Ron Greenberg , Office 
of Archeology and Historic Preservation, National Register Pub­
lications Branch , U.S. Department of Interior , Washington , 
D.C. 20240 (202-523-5486). 

Politics and Preservation. Voters in California in the June 
elections approved a revolutionary amendment to the state con­
stitution, which authorizes the legislature to "define property of 
historical significance and to restrict the uses of such property to 
preserve its historical significance." If the use of such property is 
restricted, then the property must be valued for tax purposes 
according to this restricted use. The effect of this change is to 
lower taxes on buildings of historical value , which reduces the 
tax pressure to change or destroy landmarks . 

State Politics and the National Register. In both Georgia and 
California, state politicians have attacked National Register 
nominations by proposing amendments to the local procedure 
that would require owner consent and other items before any 
property could be considered . Arguing that many nominations 
have been arbitrary, unfair, and impediments to progress , these 
amendments will effectively "kill" the National Register pro­
grams in the respective states. Opposition is sought in both 
cases by contacting state politicians. 

Amsterdam Declaration. The culmination of European Ar­
chitectural Year was the meeting in Amsterdam October 21-25, 
1975, sponsored by the Committee on Monuments and Sites of 
the Council of Europe. Representatives included members of 
most European countries and delegates from overseas. The Uni­
ted States was represented by ICOMOS members. Working 
sessions included: "Conservation of the Architectural Heritage 
in the Context of Urban and Regional Planning"; "Social Prob­
lems of Integrated Conservation";' 'Future of the Architectural 
Heritage in the Year 2000''; and others. The Declaration of 
Amsterdam affirmed a number of principles of architectural con­
servation. Stated in the Declaration was: "Formerly limited to 
the most famous monuments, sites or complexes, the concept of 
the architectural heritage today includes all groups of buildings 
which constitute an entity not only by virtue of the coherence of 
their architectural style but also because of the imprint of the 
communities which have been settled there for generations ." 
For information on European Architectural Year and the numer­
ous studies and conferences that have been held, contact Direc­
torate of Environment and Local Authorities , Council of 
Europe, 67006 Strasbourg Cedex, France. 
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